STATE LEGISLATION COMMITTEE
Wednesday, August 27, 2025
10:00am — 12:00pm
City Hall, Room 288

OVERVIEW

This meeting will be held in person at the location listed above. Members of the public may
attend the meeting to observe and provide public comment at the physical meeting
location listed above. Members of the public may view the meeting by reviewing the details
below, with the video link, phone number, and other related information provided:

e Meeting ID: 2663 705 7838

e Meeting Password: XmSWi3mh4Y2

e Join by Phone at: +1-415-655-0001 (Please dial “#” after entering the Meeting ID
to view the meeting)

e Link:
https://sfpublic.webex.com/sfpublic/i.php?MTID=m8ab6a7f9b96224c6dd2e6b92be48
a61d

e Public Comment: Please review instructions on page 4.

MEMBERS

Mayor’s Office (Chair) -- Eileen Mariano

Supervisor Connie Chan’s Office -- Frances Hsieh

Board President Rafael Mandelman’s Office — Brad Phelps
Assessor’s Office -- Holly Lung

City Attorney’s Office -- Rebekah Krell

Controller’s Office — Greyson Spencer

Treasurer’s Office — Eric Manke

AGENDA
l. ROLL CALL

Il APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES (Action Item). Discussion and possible
action to approve the minutes from the meeting on July 30, 2025.

. STATE LOBBYIST OVERVIEW AND UPDATE (Discussion Item). The City’s
state lobbyist will present to the Committee an update on State legislative
matters.


https://sfpublic.webex.com/sfpublic/j.php?MTID=m8ab6a7f9b96224c6dd2e6b92be48a61d
https://sfpublic.webex.com/sfpublic/j.php?MTID=m8ab6a7f9b96224c6dd2e6b92be48a61d

PROPOSED LEGISLATION (Discussion and Action). Discussion and possible
action item: the Committee will review and discuss state legislation affecting the
City and County of San Francisco. ltems are listed by Department, then by bill
number.

New Business

San Francisco Department of Technology
Presenter: Jeremy Pollock

V.

VL.

SB 716 (Durazo): Lifeline program: broadband internet access service.
Recommended Position: Support

The Department of Technology (DT) recommends a SUPPORT position on SB 716
as currently drafted (7/17/25), which would add stand-alone broadband Internet
service to the California LifeLine program. This would enable low-income
households to receive a monthly subsidy of up to $30/month for qualifying home
Internet service (at least 100/20 Mbps). Participating ISPs would be eligible for up to
$19/month/subscriber in funding from the California Lifeline program and
$9.25/month/subscriber from the federal component of the program. SB 716 also
removes the historic barrier that ISPs receive “Eligible Telecommunications Carrier”
(ETC) certification from the CPUC, reducing a major regulatory barrier to
participation from local governments and other entities. SB 716 would authorize the
CPUC to implement the program, which would sunset in 2032.

GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENT. Members of the public may address the

Committee on items of interest that are within the Committee’s subject matter
jurisdiction and that do not appear on the agenda.

ADJOURNMENT



Disability Access

Room 201 of City Hall is located at 1 Dr. Carton B. Goodlett Place and is
wheelchair accessible. The closest accessible BART Station is Civic Center, three
blocks from City Hall. Accessible Muni lines serving this location are: #47 Van
Ness, and the #71 Haight/Noriega and the F Line to Market and Van Ness, as well
as Muni Metro stations at Van Ness and Civic Center. For more information about
Muni accessible services, call 923-6142. There is accessible parking at the Civic
Center Plaza garage.

The State Legislation Committee does not permit remote public comment by
members of the public its meetings, except as legally required to enable people
with disabilities to participate in such meetings. If you require remote access as
a means of reasonable accommodation under ADA, please contact the State
Legislation Committee to request remote access, including a description of the
functional limitation(s) that precludes your ability to attend in person. Requests
made at least two business days in advance of the meeting will help to ensure
availability. For further assistance, please contact Joshua Cardenas, Mayor’s
Office, at: joshua.cardenas@sfgov.org.

Know Your Rights Under the Sunshine Ordinance

The government’s duty is to serve the public, reaching its decisions in full view of
the public. Commissions, boards, councils, and other agencies of the City and
County exist to conduct the people’s business. This ordinance assures that
deliberations are conducted before the people and that City operations are open to
the people’s review. For information on your rights under the Sunshine Ordinance
(Chapter 67 of the San Francisco Administrative Code) or to report a violation of
the ordinance, contact the Donna Hall at Sunshine Ordinance Task Force, 1 Dr.
Carlton B. Goodlett Place, Room 244, San Francisco, CA 94102, by phone at 415-
554-7724, by fax at 415-554-7854, or email the Sunshine Ordinance Taskforce
Administrator at sotf@sfgov.org. Citizens may obtain a free copy of the Sunshine
Ordinance by contacting the Task Force, or by printing Chapter 67 of the San
Francisco Administrative Code on the Internet, at www.sfgov.org/sunshine.htm.

Lobbyist Registration and Reporting Requirements

Individuals and entities that influence or attempt to influence local legislative or
administrative action may be required by the San Francisco Lobbyist Ordinance
(San Francisco Campaign and Governmental Conduct Code Sec. 2.100 —2.160) to
register and report lobbying activity. For more information about the Lobbyist
Ordinance, please contact the San Francisco Ethics Commission at 30 Van Ness
Avenue, Suite 3900, San Francisco, CA 94102; telephone 415-581-2300, fax 415-
581-2317, Internet website: www.sfgov.org/ethics.

Cell Phones and Pagers

The ringing and use of cell phones, pagers, and similar sound-producing electronic
devices are prohibited at this meeting. Please be advised that the Chair may order


mailto:joshua.cardenas@sfgov.org
mailto:sotf@sfgov.org
http://www.sfgov.org/sunshine.htm.
http://www.sfgov.org/ethics

the removal from the meeting room of any person(s) responsible for the ringing or
use of a cell phone, pager, or other similar sound-producing electronic devices.

Public Comment

Public Comment will be taken in-person on each item on the agenda before or during
consideration of that item.

e To view the meeting via computer systems:
https://sfpublic.webex.com/sfpublic/i.php?MTID=m6681835cd6480991d3922
3322971336
NOTE: Depending on your broadband/WIFI connection, there may be a 30-
second to 2-minute delay when viewing the meeting live.

e To view the meeting via phone:
o Join by Phone at: +1-415-655-0001
o Webinar ID: 2669 222 6780
o NOTE: Once you join the meeting via the number above, enter the webinar
ID and then press # to enter the meeting.

Information Regarding Providing Public Comment

Each individual may comment 1 time per agenda item.
Each individual may speak for up to 2 minutes; after which time the line is
automatically silenced.

Documents that may have been provided to members of the State Legislation
Committee in connection with the items on the agenda include proposed state
legislation, consultant reports, correspondence and reports from City departments, and
public correspondence. These may be inspected by contacting Eileen Mariano,
Manager, State and Federal Affairs, Mayor’s Office at: eileen.f.mariano@sfgov.org.

Health Considerations

In order to assist the City’s efforts to accommodate persons with severe allergies,
environmental illnesses, multiple chemical sensitivity or related disabilities, attendees
at public meetings are reminded that other attendees may be sensitive to various
chemical-based products. Please help the City accommodate these individuals.


https://sfpublic.webex.com/sfpublic/j.php?MTID=m6681835cd6480991d3922332297f1336
https://sfpublic.webex.com/sfpublic/j.php?MTID=m6681835cd6480991d3922332297f1336
mailto:eileen.f.mariano@sfgov.org

STATE LEGISLATION COMMITTEE
Wednesday, July 30, 2025
10:00am — 12:00pm
City Hall, Room 201

OVERVIEW

This meeting will be held in person at the location listed above. Members of the public may
attend the meeting to observe and provide public comment at the physical meeting
location listed above. Members of the public may view the meeting by reviewing the details
below, with the video link, phone number, and other related information provided:

e Meeting ID: 2661 634 0008

e Meeting Password: qWpMyZCJ665

e Join by Phone at: +1-415-655-0001 (Please dial “#” after entering the Meeting ID
to view the meeting)

e Link:
https://sfpublic.webex.com/sfpublic/j.php?MTID=md7b3563abbfba150644b03d46f792
4bf

e Public Comment: Please review instructions on page 5.

MEMBERS

Mayor’s Office (Chair) -- Eileen Mariano

Supervisor Connie Chan’s Office -- Frances Hsieh

Board President Rafael Mandelman’s Office — Brad Phelps
Assessor’s Office -- Holly Lung

City Attorney’s Office -- Rebekah Krell

Controller’s Office -- Marie Warchol

Treasurer’s Office — Amanda Fried

AGENDA
Meeting commenced at 10:01am.
VIl. ROLL CALL

Present: Eileen Mariano, Robyn Burke, Brad Phelps, Rebekah Krell, Holly Lung,
Calvin Quock, and Amanda Fried.

VIll. APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES (Action Item). Discussion and possible


https://sfpublic.webex.com/sfpublic/j.php?MTID=md7b3563abbfba150644b03d46f7924bf
https://sfpublic.webex.com/sfpublic/j.php?MTID=md7b3563abbfba150644b03d46f7924bf

action to approve the minutes from the meeting on June 25, 2025.

Motion to Approve: Robyn Burke
Seconded by: Brad Phelps
Approved: 7-0

IX. STATE LOBBYIST OVERVIEW AND UPDATE (Discussion Item). The City’s
state lobbyist will present to the Committee an update on State legislative
matters.

X. PROPOSED LEGISLATION (Discussion and Action). Discussion and possible
action item: the Committee will review and discuss state legislation affecting the
City and County of San Francisco. ltems are listed by Department, then by bill
number.

New Business

San Francisco Public Utilities Commission
Presenter: Scott Ammon

SB 283 (Laird): Energy Storage Systems.
Recommended Position: Support

The bill would conform the California Building Code (CBC) and safety certification
requirements to the National Fire Protection Association (NFPA) 855 standards for
battery storage. Specifically, the bill would require projects submitted for certification
to the California Energy Commission (CEC) to demonstrate that they are
constructed consistent with the CBC or NFPA 855, whichever is most protective. SB
283 would require projects submitted to local authorities to be designed in
accordance with NFPA 855. The bill would also require projects submitted to the
CEC or local authorities to be inspected by local fire officials prior to commencing
operations.

The SFPUC recommends a support position for SB 283.

Motion to Approve: Brad Phelps
Seconded by: Amanda Fried
Approved: 7-0

San Francisco Municipal Transportation Agency
Presenter: Monique Webster

SB 63 (Wiener): San Francisco Bay Area Local revenue measure: transportation
funding
Recommended Position: Support

SB 63 would establish a Transportation Revenue Measure District including
Alameda, Contra Costa and San Francisco counties, with a provision for San Mateo
and Santa Clara counties to opt in, to be administered by the Metropolitan



Transportation Commission (MTC). The bill would authorize a multi-county regional
transportation funding measure in the form of a sales tax, for a duration of 10 to 15
years subject to voter approval on the November 2026 ballot, to fund transit
operations in the Bay Area.

Motion to Approve: Amanda Fried
Seconded by: Brad Phelps
Approved: 7-0

San Francisco Human Services Agency
Presenter: Rose Johns

Xl.

XIl.

SB 694 (Archuleta): Deceptive Practices: Service Members and Veterans
Recommended Position: Support

Senate Bill 694 seeks to strengthen protections for veterans by prohibiting any
person not accredited by the Veterans Administration (VA) from charging a veteran
for help with a benefits claim, prohibiting the charging of fees that exceed what a
VA-accredited attorney or claims agent could legally charge to assist a veteran with
a benefits claim, and prohibiting the requiring of access to veterans’ data on VA
systems.

As the home of the accredited San Francisco County Veterans Service Office, the
Department of Disability and Aging Services (DAS) supports this bill to help ensure
veterans utilize trusted and accountable claims assistance.

Motion to Approve: Robyn Burke
Seconded by: Holly Lung
Approved: 7-0

GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENT. Members of the public may address the
Committee on items of interest that are within the Committee’s subject matter
jurisdiction and that do not appear on the agenda.

ADJOURNMENT

Meeting adjourned at 10:24am.



Disability Access

Room 201 of City Hall is located at 1 Dr. Carton B. Goodlett Place and is
wheelchair accessible. The closest accessible BART Station is Civic Center, three
blocks from City Hall. Accessible Muni lines serving this location are: #47 Van
Ness, and the #71 Haight/Noriega and the F Line to Market and Van Ness, as well
as Muni Metro stations at Van Ness and Civic Center. For more information about
Muni accessible services, call 923-6142. There is accessible parking at the Civic
Center Plaza garage.

The State Legislation Committee does not permit remote public comment by
members of the public its meetings, except as legally required to enable people
with disabilities to participate in such meetings. If you require remote access as
a means of reasonable accommodation under ADA, please contact the State
Legislation Committee to request remote access, including a description of the
functional limitation(s) that precludes your ability to attend in person. Requests
made at least two business days in advance of the meeting will help to ensure
availability. For further assistance, please contact Joshua Cardenas, Mayor’s
Office, at: joshua.cardenas@sfgov.org.

Know Your Rights Under the Sunshine Ordinance

The government’s duty is to serve the public, reaching its decisions in full view of
the public. Commissions, boards, councils, and other agencies of the City and
County exist to conduct the people’s business. This ordinance assures that
deliberations are conducted before the people and that City operations are open to
the people’s review. For information on your rights under the Sunshine Ordinance
(Chapter 67 of the San Francisco Administrative Code) or to report a violation of
the ordinance, contact the Donna Hall at Sunshine Ordinance Task Force, 1 Dr.
Carlton B. Goodlett Place, Room 244, San Francisco, CA 94102, by phone at 415-
554-7724, by fax at 415-554-7854, or email the Sunshine Ordinance Taskforce
Administrator at sotf@sfgov.org. Citizens may obtain a free copy of the Sunshine
Ordinance by contacting the Task Force, or by printing Chapter 67 of the San
Francisco Administrative Code on the Internet, at www.sfgov.org/sunshine.htm.

Lobbyist Registration and Reporting Requirements

Individuals and entities that influence or attempt to influence local legislative or
administrative action may be required by the San Francisco Lobbyist Ordinance
(San Francisco Campaign and Governmental Conduct Code Sec. 2.100 —2.160) to
register and report lobbying activity. For more information about the Lobbyist
Ordinance, please contact the San Francisco Ethics Commission at 30 Van Ness
Avenue, Suite 3900, San Francisco, CA 94102; telephone 415-581-2300, fax 415-
581-2317, Internet website: www.sfgov.org/ethics.

Cell Phones and Pagers

The ringing and use of cell phones, pagers, and similar sound-producing electronic
devices are prohibited at this meeting. Please be advised that the Chair may order


mailto:joshua.cardenas@sfgov.org
mailto:sotf@sfgov.org
http://www.sfgov.org/sunshine.htm.
http://www.sfgov.org/ethics

the removal from the meeting room of any person(s) responsible for the ringing or
use of a cell phone, pager, or other similar sound-producing electronic devices.

Public Comment

Public Comment will be taken in-person on each item on the agenda before or during
consideration of that item.

e To view the meeting via computer systems:
https://sfpublic.webex.com/sfpublic/j.php?MTID=m6681835cd6480991d3922332
297f1336
NOTE: Depending on your broadband/WIFI connection, there may be a 30-
second to 2-minute delay when viewing the meeting live.

e To view the meeting via phone:
o Join by Phone at: +1-415-655-0001
o Webinar ID: 2669 222 6780
o NOTE: Once you join the meeting via the number above, enter the webinar ID
and then press # to enter the meeting.

Information Regarding Providing Public Comment

Each individual may comment 1 time per agenda item.
Each individual may speak for up to 2 minutes; after which time the line is automatically
silenced.

Documents that may have been provided to members of the State Legislation Committee
in connection with the items on the agenda include proposed state legislation, consultant
reports, correspondence and reports from City departments, and public correspondence.
These may be inspected by contacting Eileen Mariano, Manager, State and Federal
Affairs, Mayor’s Office at: eileen.f.mariano@sfgov.org.

Health Considerations

In order to assist the City’s efforts to accommodate persons with severe allergies,
environmental illnesses, multiple chemical sensitivity or related disabilities, attendees at
public meetings are reminded that other attendees may be sensitive to various chemical-
based products. Please help the City accommodate these individuals.


https://sfpublic.webex.com/sfpublic/j.php?MTID=m6681835cd6480991d3922332297f1336
https://sfpublic.webex.com/sfpublic/j.php?MTID=m6681835cd6480991d3922332297f1336
mailto:eileen.f.mariano@sfgov.org

State Legislation Committee Proposal Form

This form should be used to submit legislative proposals for consideration by the
State Legislation Committee. We ask that you keep your submissions under two
pages. Before submission, proposals must be reviewed and approved by the
Department Head or Commission. Please send completed forms to Eileen Mariano at
Eileen.f.mariano@sfgov.org, Aly Bonde at aly.bonde@sfgov.org, and Joshua Cardenas at
Joshua.Cardenas@sfgov.org.

Date Submitted August 20, 2025
Submitting Department Department of Technology
Contact Name Jeremy Pollock
Contact Email and Phone Number jeremy.pollock@sfgov.org 628-652-5083
SLC Meeting Presenter Jeremy Pollock
Reviewed and approved by Department Head? X YES CONO
Reviewed and approved by Commission? JYES CONO N/A
SB 716

Senator Maria Elena Durazo, Senate District #26, D-Los Angeles
Lifeline program: broadband internet access service.

Recommended Position

CJSPONSOR [X SUPPORT [ISUPPORT if amended 0 OPPOSE 0O OTHER & Describe

Summary

The Department of Technology (DT) recommends a SUPPORT position on SB 716 as currently
drafted (7/17/25), which would add stand-alone broadband Internet service to the California
LifeLine program. This would enable low-income households to receive a monthly subsidy of up to
$30/month for qualifying home Internet service (at least 100/20 Mbps). Participating ISPs would be
eligible for up to $19/month/subscriber in funding from the California Lifeline program and
$9.25/month/subscriber from the federal component of the program. SB 716 also removes the
historic barrier that ISPs receive “Eligible Telecommunications Carrier” (ETC) certification from the
CPUC, reducing a major regulatory barrier to participation from local governments and other
entities. SB 716 would authorize the CPUC to implement the program, which would sunsetin 2032.

Background/Analysis

In 2020 in response to the COVID pandemic, the federal Affordable Connectivity Program (ACP)
was created to offer eligible households a $30/month broadband discount through participating
ISPs, with broad provider participation and plan designs that zeroed out customer bills. At its peak,
ACP supported about 3 million California households. However, ACP ran out of funding and ended
in 2024. SB 716 aims to fill part of that affordability gap by adding a state-level, ACP-like option
within the existing California LifeLine program.

San Francisco’s Fiber-to-Housing (FTH) program already provide free broadband service to non
profit-managed affordable housing sites containing over 20,000 households. DT maintains the


mailto:Eileen.f.mariano@sfgov.org
mailto:aly.bonde@sfgov.org
mailto:Joshua.Cardenas@sfgov.org
mailto:jeremy.pollock@sfgov.org

network and MOHCD provides customer support. Under SB 716’s framework, DT (or an affiliate)
could qualify to receive the state LifeLine broadband subsidy for eligible FTH households once
CPUC rules are adopted. This could create a significant new funding stream for maintaining and
growing the FTH program. There is a significant backlog of affordable housing sites that have not
been connected to the FTH network. SB 716 could also allow for the potential expansion of the
program to eligible low-income households that do not live in affordable housing.

Challenge

Affordability is the top barrier to home broadband adoption for low-income households—even where
infrastructure exists. State survey data show cost far outpaces other reasons for non-subscription.
LifeLine is currently a phone-centric benefit, and there is no statewide option to apply the benefit to
standalone home broadband, which residents need for school, work, telehealth, and more.

Solution/Recommended Proposal

SB 716 would provide direct affordability relief for tens of thousands of low-income San Francisco
households by allowing the LifeLine subsidy to be applied to a home broadband plan. If DT was
able to qualify as a participating ISP, this could generate more than $1 million in annual revenue to
fund the City’s digital-equity programs.

Departments Impacted & Why

e DT: Potential new funding stream for maintaining and growing the FTH network.
e MOHCD: Potential new funding stream for FTH customer service.

Fiscal Impact

If DT was eligible for the SB 716 subsidy, and 25% of the 20,000 FTH households were enrolled, it
would generate $1.1 million in annual revenue, or $1.7 million if DT was able to obtain ETC
certification.

Support / Opposition

Support (abbreviated list)

AARP

Broadband Consortium Pacific Coast

Building Opportunities for Self-sufficiency California Association of Student Councils
California Emerging Technology Fund

California Human Development

California Rural Legal Assistance Foundation

California School Boards Association

California State Council of SEIU

City of Merced

Courage California

Digitallift

Disability Rights California

End Child Poverty California Powered by Grace

International Longshore & Warehouse Union Locals 13, 63, 94
Janice Hahn, Board Supervisor, Los Angeles

LA Cooperativa Campesina De California

Los Amigos De LA Comunidad, INC.



Monterey Bay Economic Partnership
Newstart Housing Corporation

San Francisco Tech Council

Unite Here International Union, AFL-CIO
Western Center on Law & Poverty
Opposition

California Taxpayers Association

CTIA



